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Please ensure all cell phones, personal digital assistants (PDAs) and other electronic 

devices are turned off or placed on non-audible mode during the meeting. 
 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 

 
 

2. Declaration of Interest under the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act 

 
 

3. Consent 

 
*    The following items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered to be routine and 

non-controversial by the Committee and will be approved at this time. There 
will be no separate discussion of any of these items unless a Committee 

Member requests it, in which case the item will not be consented to and will 
be considered in the normal sequence of the agenda. 

 

(6.1) 
 

 
4. Delegations/Presentations 

 

 
5. Reports – Internal Audit 

 
5.1. Report from K. Liew, Acting Director, Internal Audit, Office of the Chief 

Administrative Officer, dated May 20, 2016, re: Quarterly Status of 

Management Action Plans – March 2016. 

 

To be received 
 
 

5.2. Report from A. Damian, Senior Advisor, Internal Audit, Office of the Chief 
Administrative Officer, dated May 11, 2016, re: Corporate Fraud Prevention 

Hotline Overview – Phase I (File GE.a). 

 
To be received 

 
 

5.3. Report from G. Lee, Internal Auditor, Office of the Chief Administrative Officer, 
dated May 7, 2016, re: Driver Certification Program (DCP) Specified 
Procedures Inspection Compliance Audits. 

 
To be received 
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6. Reports – Finance 

 
* 6.1. Report from S. Gannon, Director, Treasury Services, Corporate Services, dated 

May 15, 2016, re: 2015 Audited Financial Statements for the City of 

Brampton. 

 

To be received 
 
 

6.2. Report from S. Gannon, Director, Treasury Services, Corporate Services, re: 
Canadian Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting – 2014. 

 
To be received 
 

 
7. Other/New Business 

 
 

8. Question Period 

 
 

9. Public Question Period 
 
15 Minute Limit – (regarding any item discussed as part of this agenda) 

 
 

10. Closed Session 

 
Note: A separate package regarding this agenda item is distributed to Members 

of Council and senior staff only. 
 

10.1. Report from Karen Liew, Acting Director, Internal Audit, dated May 27, 2016, re: 
Employee Purchasing Card Audit Report (File GE.a) – the security of the 

property of the municipality or local board  

 
 

11. Adjournment 
 
Next Meeting:  September 13, 2016 

 
 

 



 
 
 Report 

Audit Committee 
The Corporation of the City of Brampton  

2016-06-07 
 

 

Date: May 20, 2016 

 
Subject: Quarterly Status of Management Action Plans – March 2016 

 
Contact: Karen Liew, Acting Director Internal Audit, Office of the Chief 

Administrative Officer, 905-874-3836, Karen.Liew@brampton.ca 

 
 
Recommendations: 

 
1. That the report from Karen Liew, Acting Director, Internal Audit Division, dated 

May 20, 2016 to the Audit Committee Meeting of June 7, 2016, re: Quarterly 

Status of Management Action Plans – March 2016 (File GE.a), be received. 

 

Overview: 

 

 As part of the Internal Audit follow-up process, departments are required 
to provide Internal Audit with a quarterly update on the management 

action plan status and progress of outstanding audit recommendations; 
 

 The objective of this report is for Internal Audit to inform Audit 
Committee members on the progress of the implementation of 
recommendations, as reported by management; 

 

 The comments reflect the status of the implementation of 

recommendations due to be completed on or prior to March 31, 2016;  
 

 As at March 31, 2016, 90% of the audit recommendations with an 
implementation due date of March 31, 2016 or prior, have been 
completed by management; 

 

 Internal Audit may validate results at a subsequent date as part of the 

follow up audit process; 
 

 Details concerning the individual recommendations are available upon 

request. 
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Background: 
 

In accordance with Standard 2500 A-1 of the International Standards for Professional 

Practice of Internal Auditing, Internal Audit has established a follow up process to 
monitor and ensure that management action plans for audit recommendations have 

been implemented. This process has been in place since 2006. 
 
For the follow up process, departments are required to provide a quarterly update to 

Internal Audit on the progress of implementing agreed upon audit recommendations. 
Internal Audit reviews the comments submitted by the department and periodically 

the Director, Internal Audit will meet with department heads to discuss their 
comments, if necessary. Internal Audit will perform, in some cases, a follow up audit 
to validate that the recommendations have been implemented, and that the 

processes and procedures in place are operating effectively. 
 

The results and comments from management are summarized in a quarterly report to 
the Audit Committee, which includes a summary of revised due dates for those 
recommendations that have not been completed by the original due date.  

For this report, management responded with information detailing actions taken on 
recommendations due to be implemented by March 31, 2016.    

 
 
Current Situation: 

 

All audit recommendations from audit reports issued prior to 2014 have been 

implemented by management.  This report analyzes recommendations from audit 
reports issued in 2014 and onwards, which have a completion date (as stated in the 
audit report) of or prior to March 31, 2016.  Long range recommendations 

(implementation completion date subsequent to March 31, 2016) are noted where 
applicable. 

  
Overall, management has implemented 90% of the recommendations as at March 
31, 2016. Since the last report to the February 24, 2016 Audit Committee (which 

covered the status of audit recommendations with due dates of prior to January 1, 
2016, twelve recommendations have been completed.  

 
Overall, there are a total of 175 recommendations that were originally scheduled to 
be implemented prior to or by March 31, 2016.  The following is a table with the 

breakdown of the recommendations, by department, as at the end of March 2016: 
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Note: Where recommendations are the responsibility of more than one department 

they have been recorded in each of the respective departments. 
 
 

Analysis: 
 

Since the last report to the February 24, 2016 Audit Committee, management has 

reported that all recommendations for the Peel Village Golf Course Cash Handling 
audit have been completed. 
 

The following table provides a breakdown of the status of the recommendations, by 
audit report, as at the end of March 2016: 

 
 

 
 
 
For the 18 recommendations where implementation was originally due by or prior to 

March 31, 2016, management has the following revisions to the implementation 
dates: 
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Strategic Plan: 
 

This report achieves the Strategic Plan priority of Good Government through the 
establishment of an Internal Audit follow up procedure for the implementation of audit 

recommendations, which promotes corporate accountability, values and governance 
best practice. 
 
 

Conclusion: 
 

Implemented recommendations are following a consistent trend with an overall 

completion rate of approximately 80% to 90% over the past five years. This 
demonstrates that management and staff are committed to implementing audit 

recommendations to enhance processes in order to manage risk more effectively in 
their respective areas. Internal Audit encourages management and staff to continue 
striving to meet the target completion dates of audit recommendations. 

 
 

 
 
        

 
   

Karen Liew, CPA, CA 

Acting Director, Internal Audit 

  

 
 

 
 

Report authored by:  Karen Liew, CPA, CA 
    Acting Director, Internal Audit 
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 Report 

Audit Committee 
The Corporation of the City of Brampton  

2016-06-07 
 

 

Date: May 11, 2016 

 
Subject: Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline Overview – Phase I 

 
Contact: Andrew Damian, Senior Advisor, Internal Audit, Office of the Chief 

Administrative Officer, 905-874-2216, Andrew.Damian@brampton.ca 

 
 
Recommendations: 

 
1. That the report from Andrew Damian, Senior Advisor, Internal Audit, Internal 

Audit Division, dated May 11, 2016 to the Audit Committee Meeting of June 7, 

2016, re: Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline Overview – Phase I (File GE.a) 

be received. 

 
 

Overview: 
 

 City of Brampton has purchased a third party fraud prevention hotline 

intake service and case management system to support the City’s 
Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy; 

 

 The system is provided by ClearView Strategic Partners, a leader in 

ethics and ethics reporting systems and has been in use for over 15 
years and in several other municipal governments; 

 

 The ClearView system is a highly secure, comprehensive, entirely 
Canadian, anonymous and confidential solution; 

 

 Expected implementation of Phase I, Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline 

open to City of Brampton employees is June 2016; 
 

 Expected implementation of Phase II, Corporate Fraud Prevention 

Hotline open to members of the public is December 2016; 
 

 Internal Audit will update the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis on 
the status of the Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline. 
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Background:  

 
At the February 22, 2012 Audit Committee meeting, a question was raised about 

what processes/initiatives exist at the City of Brampton to address the detection and 
prevention of fraud. A briefing note distributed on March 2, 2012 to the Mayor and 

Members of Council indicated that the City Manager, Director of Internal Audit, 
Executive Director of Human Resources and the City Solicitor were developing a 
robust Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy and Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) 

as part of the City’s commitment to provide the highest quality of service to 
taxpayers. At the February 27, 2013 Audit Committee meeting, Internal Audit 

presented an expanded Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy, which included 
enhanced whistleblower protection and introduced a fraud prevention hotline as one 
of several methods available to staff to report a suspected act of fraud. At the June 3, 

2015 Audit Committee meeting, Internal Audit provided an update to the Corporate 
Fraud Prevention Policy and the related Fraud Prevention Hotline and recommended 

that the policy and hotline be approved. Council approved the policy and hotline at 
the June 17, 2015 City Council meeting. 
 

 
Current Situation:  

 
In the fall of 2015 Internal Audit initiated the procurement process for the purchase of 
a third party fraud prevention hotline intake service and case management system to 

support the City’s Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy. The intake service and case 
management system enables City staff to establish, manage and track the status of 

all active cases reported by City employees (Phase I) and members of the public 
(Phase II - after the first six months of the hotline operation.) The winner of the 
competition was the ClearView Connects system provided by ClearView Strategic 

Partners (ClearView). 
 

ClearView was founded in 1997 and focuses solely on ethics and ethics reporting 
systems and is a recognized leader in these types of solutions. The ClearView 
Connects system has been in use for over 15 years, including several other 

municipal governments, such as City of Mississauga, City of Calgary, City of 
Edmonton and City of Winnipeg. The system is highly-secure, comprehensive, 

entirely Canadian, anonymous and confidential. The vendor has committed to 
providing a security platform that is comparable to that within the financial industry, to 
ensure that confidential data is secure. In addition, City of Brampton staff will perform 

a security and privacy assessment to ensure the vendor conforms to the City’s 
requirements. 

 
The ClearView Connects system allows employees and members of the public to 
remain anonymous if they choose to do so and the vendor ensures that no personal 

information is gathered from the employee/member of the public and no information 
about the originating telephone or computer is collected or displayed in any form. 

 
In addition, Internal Audit performed benchmarking to determine which other 
municipalities operate similar fraud hotlines.  Please refer to Appendix A for a listing 

of municipalities with fraud hotlines and their corresponding suppliers. 
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The implementation of the Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy and Hotline is currently 
underway and a Committee has been formed and working together for several 
months to ensure processes and documentation are developed. Please refer to 
Appendix B for a high level representation of the Corporate Fraud Prevention 

Hotline process.  Members of the Committee include the Chief Corporate Services 

Officer, City Solicitor, Executive Director, Human Resources, City Clerk, Director, 
Internal Audit as well as staff from Internal Audit and Strategic Communications.  
 

The Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline will be available to City employees in Phase 
I with an estimated implementation date of June 2016, after which the hotline will be 

made available to the public after the first six months of operation (Phase II). 
 
Internal Audit will update the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis on the status of 

the Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline, including statistics on the number and types 
of reports received as well as status of any ongoing and/or completed fraud 

investigations. 
 
 

Corporate Implications: 

 

Financial Implications:   
 
The 2016 operating budget approved by Council, includes $140,000 for 

implementation, maintenance and operation of the Corporate Fraud Prevention 
hotline.  The contract underway with ClearView is in the amount of $27,145 for 

services provided over a 12-month period from the date of implementation.  There is 
sufficient funding approved and available to proceed.  
 

Other Implications: 
None 
 
 
Strategic Plan: 

 

This report achieves the Strategic Plan priority of Good Government through the 

establishment of Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy and Hotline that promotes 
corporate accountability and values and governance best practice. 
 

 
Conclusion: 

 

The Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy and Hotline enhances and strengthens the 
City’s governance structure. It reinforces Council’s expectations regarding rules of 

behavior and emphasizes the values of the City. Phase I of the implementation of the 
Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline will be available to City employees in June 2016, 

and six months later to members of the public (Phase II). Internal Audit will continue 
to update the Audit Committee on the status of the hotline and any ongoing and/or 
completed fraud investigations at upcoming meetings.                         
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Karen Liew, CPA, CA 
Acting Director, Internal Audit 

 Andrew Damian, CIA 
Senior Advisor, Internal Audit 

 
 
Attachments: 

 
Appendix A:   Municipalities with Fraud Hotlines 
 

Appendix B:   Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline Process 
 

 
Report authored by:  Andrew Damian, CIA 

Senior Advisor, Internal Audit 
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Municipalities with Fraud Hotlines 

 
 

Municipality Fraud Hotline Type Vendor 

Ottawa Third Party Two vendors – one for website, one for 

toll free call centre 

Toronto In House Forensic Office 

Windsor Third Party PwC 

Oakville Third Party Two vendors – one for website, one for 

toll free call centre 

Mississauga Third Party ClearView 

Edmonton Third Party ClearView 

Calgary Third Party ClearView 

Montreal Third Party No name provided 

Halifax In House Auditor General Office 

Winnipeg Third Party ClearView 
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Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline Process 
 

 

Employee reports potential fraud
 by phone or voicemail

Employee reports potential fraud
via web

ClearView staff records employee
report into the system

System sends immediate email
notification to Internal Audit

Internal Audit conducts preliminary investigation
in consultation with Dept. Head & Exec. Dir. HR

Internal Audit conducts full fraud
investigations with the assistance 

of Legal, HR, Dept. Head

Results of fraud investigations are presented
to Committee of Exec.Dir.HR, 

City Solicitor, Dept.Head

If evidence uncovered suggests inappropriate
behaviour only and NOT fraud, the results

are forwarded to the appropriate Dept.Head
to investigate, resolve and report back to

Internal Audit

Dept.Head reports back to Internal Audit
on corrective action taken

If evidence of fraud is uncovered the Committee
notifies the CAO and where appropriate,

contact Peel Regional Police

Internal Audit reports the results of fraud investigations
to the Audit Committee
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 Report 

Audit Committee 
The Corporation of the City of Brampton  

2016-06-07 
 

 

Date: May 7, 2016 

 
Subject: Driver Certification Program (DCP) Specified Procedures 

Inspection Compliance Audits 

 
Contact: Karen Liew, Acting Director Internal Audit, Office of the Chief 

Administrative Officer, 905-874-3836, Karen.Liew@brampton.ca 
 
 
Recommendations: 

 

1. That the report from Gina Lee, Internal Auditor, dated May 7, 2016 to the Audit 
Committee Meeting of June 7, 2016 re: Driver Certification Program (DCP) 
Specified Procedures Inspection Compliance Audits (File GE.a) be 

received. 

 

Overview: 
 

 Internal Audit conducted two compliance audits as per the 2016 Internal 

Audit Work Plan; 

 The audits were conducted in conformance with the International 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as well as in 

conformance with the requirements outlined by the Ministry of 

Transportation; 

 Driver Certification Program (DCP) Specified Procedures Inspection  

Compliance Audits were performed on behalf of the Brampton Transit, 

Brampton Fleet Services and Brampton Fire & Emergency Services 

divisions of the Public Services Department and Planning and 

Infrastructure respectively; 

 Based on the results of the audits, it is Internal Audit’s opinion that 

Brampton Transit, Brampton Fleet Services and Brampton Fire and 

Emergency Services are in compliance with the driver certification 

program requirements for the period from September 2014 to February 

2016. 
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Background: 
 

Brampton Transit, Brampton Fleet Services and Brampton Fire and Emergency 

Services are recognized authorities for more than 15 years under the Ministry of 
Transportation’s driver certification program.  As of January 2015, the Ministry of 

Transportation’s driver certification program approved the ama lgamation of Fire and 
Emergency Services with Fleet Services as one recognized authority.  Under this 
program, recognized authorities are permitted to provide instructions, conduct 

examinations, and grant licence upgrades and renewals for several classifications. 
 

Previously, the Ministry conducted the compliance audits; however, in 2014 a 
process was implemented whereby the Ministry delegated the authority to conduct 
audits on their behalf.  The City’s Internal Audit meets the criteria to conduct the 

Driver Certification Program (DCP) audits on behalf of the Ministry.  The first DCP 
audit was reported to the Audit Committee on February 25, 2015, and no infraction 

resulted from the audit.   
 
 

Current Situation: 
 

Internal Audit conducted the 2016 Driver Certification Program (DCP) Specified 
Procedures Inspection Compliance Audits for Brampton Transit, Brampton Fleet 
Services and Brampton Fire and Emergency Services for the period from September 

2014 to February 2016.  Results of the audit will be reported to the Ministry by July 1, 
2016.  This compliance audit was completed in conformance with the requirements of 

the Ministry, and results were reported in the template provided by the Ministry. 
 
 

Conclusion: 
 

Based on the results of the specified audit procedures carried out by Internal Audit, 
Brampton Transit, Brampton Fleet Services and Brampton Fire and Emergency 
Services were in compliance with the Ministry of Transportation Ontario’s Driver 

Certification Program requirements for the period covering September 2014 to 
February 2016. 

 
 
       

 
 

  _______________________ 

Karen Liew, CPA, CA  
Acting Director, Internal Audit
     

 
 

  

 Gina Lee, CPA, CGA   
Internal Auditor    

 
Report authored by:  Gina Lee, CPA, CGA 

    Internal Auditor 
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 Report 

Audit Committee 
The Corporation of the City of Brampton  

2016-06-07 
 

 

Date: 2016-05-15 
 

Subject: 2015 Audited Financial Statements for the City of Brampton 

 
Contact: Shirley Gannon, 

Director of Treasury Services   (4-2235) 
Finance 

 
 

 
Recommendations: 

 
Whereas the Municipal Act, 2001, Section 294.1 requires that “A municipality shall, 

for each fiscal year, prepare annual financial statements for the municipality in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as 
recommended, from time to time, by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the 
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.”; 

 
Whereas the Municipal Act, 2001, Section 296 (1) requires that “A municipality shall 

appoint an auditor licensed under the Public Accounting Act, 2004, who is 
responsible for, 
 

a. Annually auditing the accounts and transactions of the municipality and its 
local boards and expressing an opinion on the financial statements of these 

bodies based on the audit.”, and 
 
Whereas the  audit of the 2015 Annual Financial Statements by the City Auditor, 

KPMG LLP Chartered Accountants is complete ;and  
 

 
1. Therefore be it Resolved that the report dated May 15, 2016 from Shirley 

Gannon, Director of Treasury Services & Deputy Treasurer, Corporate 

Services Department to the Audit Committee meeting of June 7, 2016, re: 
2015 Audited Financial Statements for the City of Brampton, be received. 
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OVERVIEW:  

 The 2015 Audited Financial Statements from the City Auditor KPMG LLP Chartered 

Accountants are presented to the Audit Committee for receipt.  

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Public 

Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) reporting standards and fully comply with 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

 These financial statements reflect the consolidated financial position as at 

December 31, 2015 and the operating results for the year for the City, its Local 

Boards and Committees of Council including The Brampton Public Library Board, 

Brampton Downtown Development Corporation and the Downtown Brampton 

Business Improvement Area. 

 The financial reporting standards do not change the City’s budgeting process, 

how the tax levy is calculated or how funding decisions are made by Council.   

 A reconciliation of the operating results for tax levy purpose and PSAB adjusted 

financial statements is provided in Schedule A of this report. 

 As part of the annual audit, the City Auditor, KPMGLLP Chartered Accountants, 

conducted a review of Internal Controls and provides an Audit Findings Report to 

Audit Committee with recommendations for improvement and accompanying 

management. 

 KPMG’s 2015 Audit Findings Report did not identify any financial reporting 

control deficiencies. 
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BACKGROUND 

 
The audit of the 2015 Annual Financial Statements by the City Auditor, KPMGLLP 

Chartered Accountants is complete and the statements are attached to this report. 

The work KPMGLLP performed is conducted in accordance with Canadian Generally 

Accepted Auditing Standards and relevant ethical requirements, including those 

pertaining to independence.  The work is also planned and performed to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

The 2015 Audited Annual Financial Statements for the City of Brampton reflect the 

financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the results of operations for the year 

for the City and its Local Boards and Committees of Council.  The following Local 

Boards and Committees of Council which are included in these financial statements 

are accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the 

City and are owned or controlled by the City: 
 

 The City of Brampton Public Library Board 

 Brampton Downtown Development Corporation (BDDC) 

 Downtown Brampton Business Improvement Area (DBBIA) 

 

The financial statements for the 2015 fiscal year have been prepared in compliance 

with the requirements of the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian 

Institute of Chartered Accountants as required by the Province of Ontario. The 

statements are presented to the Audit Committee for review and approval, which are 

part of the key statutory functions of the Audit Committee.  

 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 

 

Audit Results 

 

KPMGLLP audited the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year 2015. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.  The audit 

resulted in KPMGLLP issuing an unqualified audit opinion, which means that the 

financial statements present fairly the financial position and comply with PSAB 

municipal financial reporting requirements.  
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Report Summary 

 

The financial statements presented in this report comprise the following statements:  
 

 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and 

 Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets  

 

The financial statements provide information on the City’s financial position including 

the value of assets and liabilities, cost of delivering the City’s municipal services and 

investment in capital projects, financing sources and investing activities.    

 

The City of Brampton’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with 

Canadian public sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector 

Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.  The 

PSAB requires full accrual basis of accounting and financial reporting.  This provides 

for inclusion of certain items such as amortization of tangible capital assets and 

tangible capital assets contributed to the City through the subdivision assumption 

process.  

 

Commencing 2015, the City has adopted full accrual basis (PSAB) budgeting which 

strengthens the City’s commitment to transparency in financial reporting.  The full 

accrual PSAB based budget methodology does not change how the tax levy is 

calculated, or how funding decisions are made by City Council.  The 2015 Financial 

Statements reflects full accrual budget figures for comparison purpose.  

 

As required, the City adopted PSAB Standard PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated 

Sites effective January 1, 2015. Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are areas 

affected as a result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment 

of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 

environmental standard. This standard relates to sites that are not in productive use 

and sites in productive use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination. 

The City adopted this standard on a prospective basis. This means a change in 

accounting policy is applied starting with the current reporting period and is not 

affecting prior periods.  The financial reporting impact to the City is approximately 

$0.9 million resulting from the adoption of this reporting standard in 2015.   

 

Schedule “A” attached shows the 2015 fiscal year tax-based operating results versus 

that of the PSAB based financial reporting.  
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Highlights of 2015 Financial Statements: 

 

 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
 

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (balance sheet) has two key 

components that make up accumulated surplus: net financial assets and non-

financial assets (tangible capital assets, inventory and prepaid expenses).   
 

 “Net Financial Assets” is the net of assets (cash, investments, receivables) 

minus liabilities (accounts payable, deferred revenues and employee benefits 

and other liabilities) generated from City’s operations, activities of capi tal 

projects and Reserves and Reserve Funds.  This value serves as a key 

indicator of the City’s ability to manage its cash resources to meet its financial 

obligations. The City’s 2015 net financial assets had a balance of $453.4 

million (2014- $402.1 million), an increase of $51.3 million from 2014.  The 

increase in Net Financial Assets is primarily attributable to increase in cash 

and long-term investments resulting from higher development charges 

revenue as well as operating surplus. 
 

 “Non-Financial Assets” primarily consists of the City’s investment in tangible 

capital assets of $3.51 billion (2014 - $3.38 billion).  The increase in tangible 

capital assets is attributable to the combination of assets constructed by the 

City and brought into service and assets contributed to the City through the 

subdivision assumption process. 

 

The accumulated surplus (retained earnings) as at December 31, 2015 is $3.97 

billion (2014 - $3.79 billion), an increase of $178.9 million.  
 

 

Key items to note: 
  

 Increase in cash balance 

o The City continues to invest funds not immediately required for 

operations or capital project spending, in high yield interest bearing 

bank accounts rather than short term investments.  These bank 

account balances are included in the Cash balance of $513 million 

(2014- $478 million). 

 

  Decrease in accounts receivable  

o From $48.3 million in 2014 to $ 35.4 million in 2015 was primarily 

attributable to the receipt of $17.2 million from the Province of Ontario 

for the Ice Storm Relief Program.  

 

6.1-5



 
 
 

  Decrease in taxes receivable  

o From $53.0 million in 2014 to $ 44.3 million in 2015 was primarily 

attributable to the process improvements both internal (more timely 

ownership updates) and external (MPAC – new tax apportionment 

process; Assessment Review Board (ARB) – multi-year appeals 

review). 

 

 Southwest Quadrant Lease Obligation 

o In 2014, the City entered into a capital lease arrangement for Phase 1 

and Phase 1a of the Southwest Quadrant Renewal Plan and the City 

took occupancy of the West Tower building on July 1, 2014. The lease 

value has been recorded in the City’s financial statements as a tangible 

capital asset (TCA) with a corresponding capital lease obligation with 

remaining balance of $91.6 million as at December 31, 2015.  

 
 

 Obligatory Reserve Funds  

o Any unspent development charges (DCs), gas tax funds and other 

obligatory reserves at the end of the fiscal year are recorded as 

deferred revenue.  Deferred revenue increased by $10.2 million from 

$306.5 in 2014 to $316.7 in 2015 caused by timing of project spending. 

 

 Employee Benefits and other contingent liabilities 

o Employee benefits and other liabilities increased from $64.3 million in 

2014 to $68.4 million in 2015 mainly due to a nominal increase in 

actuarial valuations for vested sick leave, WSIB liability and early 

retirement. 

 

 The Net Book Value of Tangible capital assets 

o An increase of $127.8 million due to the infrastructure assets assumed 

from developers through subdivision agreements, construction of the 

Williams Parkway Administrative Building, purchase of transit buses 

and road construction activities.  

 

 

The Net Financial Assets position continues to be strongly positive which signifies 

that the City of Brampton is fully able to meet its financial obligations.   
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Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 
 

The Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus (income 

statement) presents the sources and uses of City’s operating financial resources 

recognized in the reporting period. 

 

Accumulated Surplus represents the City’s equity (equivalent to retained earnings of 

private business).  88% of the City’s Accumulated Surplus represents the City of 

Brampton’s investment (net book value) in tangible capital assets required to deliver 

municipal services.  The remainder of the Accumulated Surplus consists of funds 

committed for capital projects, reserves and reserve funds.  Accumulated Surplus is 

therefore not available to be used to moderate the annual tax levy since it would 

require selling City assets that are used to deliver municipal services. 

 

Revenues: 

 

Total revenues in 2015 were $72.0 million higher than 2014 increasing from $758.6 

to $830.6 million.  Major factors contributing to this increase include:  

 

 Property taxation increased by $34.0 million as a result of assessment growth 

and budgetary increases.  The majority of the growth is realized from new 

construction, particularly residential, and new plans of subdivision.  Also 

contributing to the increase, but to a much lesser extent, is the increased 

supplementary assessment received from the Municipal Property Assessment 

Corporation.  
 

 The Development Levies earned and other capital contributions increase of 

$85.3 million in 2015 over 2014 reflects the total increase of development 

charges (DC) receipts and internal funds transfers from DC reserves and other 

obligatory reserve funds to provide financing for capital projects.   

 The lower number of subdivisions assumed during 2015 over 2014 from the 

developers resulted in a $39.1 million decrease in the Developer contributed 

tangible capital assets.  

 

 

Expenses: 
 

Total operating expenses in 2015 were $18.1 million higher than 2014, increasing 

from $633.6 million to $651.7 million.  $1.5 million of this increase is attributable to 

the increase in amortization (depreciation) expense representing the value of tangible 

capital assets that were consumed during the year.  The City currently only funds 

28% of its amortization expense through tax base funded contributions to asset 

replacement reserves.  The amortization expense increased due to the $248.0 million 

in new tangible capital assets that were added during 2015.  Amortization expenses 

are non-cash in nature meaning that there was no outlay of cash resources related to 

the expense.   
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The remaining $16.6 million in increased expenses relates to increased departmental 

operating expenses in 2015.  The increased operating expenses are attributable to: 
 

 Higher utility costs 

 $8.1 million increase in project operating expenses due to increased costs 

associated with valleyland development, bridge repairs and storm water 

system restoration  

 $0.9 million related to the adoption of new accounting standard for 

contaminated sites 

 $4 million increase in post-employment and other liabilities 

 Operating and maintenance of the City’s growing infrastructure investment 
 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows reports changes in cash and cash equivalents.  It 

provides information on how the City uses its cash for operating, investing and 

financing activities.  As at December 31, 2015 the City’s cash and cash equivalents 

had a balance of $513.2 million (2014 - $477.6 million). The increase of $35.6 million 

was mainly driven by the net change in cash generated from operations that was 

partially offset by an increase in cash outlays related to the acquisition of tangible 

capital assets.  

 
 

Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets 
 

This statement explains the change in the City’s Accumulated Surplus during the 

year.  It is intended to provide the reader of the financial statements with detailed 

information on non-financial assets including the acquisition of tangible capital assets 

and the use of the assets through the value of amortization.  This statement also 

provides reporting of other non-financial asset items that impact the change in annual 

surplus and the change in net financial assets.   

 

 

Audit Findings Report 
 

Each year as part of the annual audit, the City Auditor, KPMGLLP Chartered 

Accountants, conducts a review of Internal Controls and provides an Audit Findings 

Report to the Audit Committee with recommendations for improvement and 

accompanying management responses.  

   

The 2015 Audit Findings Report from KPMGLLP Chartered Accountants is attached to 

this report.  The auditors did not identify any corrected and uncorrected 

misstatements. 
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Publication 
 

The 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements will be made public and posted on the 

City’s website, in compliance with the requirements of the Municipal Act, 2001, 

Section 295 (1). 
 

 

Corporate Implications: 
 

There are no corporate implications resulting from this report. 

 

Strategic Plan: 
 

This report achieves the strategic priority of Good Government by achieving effective 

management of the City’s finances through ensuring financial accountability and 

exercising prudent financial stewardship, managing public funds and compliance with 

statutory reporting requirements.  

 

Conclusion: 
 

KPMGLLP audited the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year 2015. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.  The audit 

resulted in KPMGLLP issuing an unqualified audit opinion, which means that the 

financial statements present fairly the financial position and comply with PSAB 

municipal financial reporting requirements. 
 

KPMGLLP Chartered Accountants also conducted a review of Internal Controls and 

provides an Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee with recommendations for 

improvement.  KPMG’s 2015 Audit Findings Report did not identify any financial 

reporting control deficiencies. 

 

Report Approved By: 

 

 

Shirley Gannon      Peter Honeyborne 

Director of Treasury Services &   Executive Director, Finance & Treasurer 

Deputy Treasurer        
 

 
 

Attachments: 
 

 2015 Audited Financial Statements  

 Audit Findings Report (for the year ended December 31, 2015) 

 Schedule A - 2015 Municipal Surplus Reconciliations, Tax Levy Purpose vs Financial 

Statements 

 

Authored by:  Maja Kuzmanov, Manager of Accounting 
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KPMG LLP 
Yonge Corporate Centre 
4100 Yonge Street, Suite 200 
Toronto ON  M2P 2H3 
Canada 
Tel 416-228-7000 
Fax 416-228-7123 
 
 

KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of  
The Corporation of the City of Brampton 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the City 
of Brampton, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
2015, the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial 
assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
  

6.1-10



 
 

 

 

Page 2 

 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of The Corporation of the City of Brampton as at December 31, 2015, 
and its consolidated results of operations and accumulated surplus, its consolidated changes in net 
financial assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants  
 
May 6, 2016 
Toronto, Canada 
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The Corporation of the City of Brampton (the “City”) is a municipality in the Province of Ontario, Canada.  
It conducts its operations guided by the provisions of provincial statutes such as the Municipal Act, 2001, 
Municipal Affairs Act, Development Charges Act and related legislation. 

  
 

1. Significant accounting policies: 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the City are prepared by management in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as recommended by the Public Sector 
Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (“CPA Canada”). 
Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows: 
   

a) Reporting entity: 
 
The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and accumulated 
surplus of the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprising all organizations, committees and local 
boards accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the City and which are 
owned or controlled by the City.  These consolidated financial statements include: 
 

 The City of Brampton Public Library Board 

 Brampton Downtown Development Corporation 

 Downtown Brampton Business Improvement Area 

Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these organizations are 
eliminated. 

  

b) Non-consolidated entities: 
 
The following Regional Municipality and local boards are not consolidated and should be contacted 
directly if examination of their annual audited financial statements is desired: 
 
             .  The Regional Municipality of Peel 

             .  The Peel District School Board  

             .  The Dufferin-Peel Catholic District School Board 

 .   Conseil Scolaire de District du Centre-Sud Ouest 

 .   Conseil Scolaire de District Catholique Centre-Sud 

 

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the City are not included in these consolidated 
financial statements but are reported separately on the Trust Funds Financial Statements. 
 

c) Accounting for Region and School Board transactions: 
 
The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations of The  
Regional Municipality of Peel (“Region of Peel”) and the school boards are not reflected in the 
accumulated surplus of these consolidated financial statements. 
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d) Basis of accounting: 
 
The City follows the accrual method of accounting. Under the accrual method of accounting revenues are 
recognized in the period in which the transactions or events that gave rise to the revenues occurred.  
Expenses are the cost of goods or services acquired in the period whether or not payment has been 
made or invoices received.  
 

e) Investments: 
 
Cash and short-term investments include short-term highly liquid investments with terms to maturity of 
365 days or less.   
 
Investments consist of bonds and debentures and are recorded at amortized cost. Discounts and 
premiums arising on the purchase of these investments are amortized over the term of the investments. 
When there has been a loss of value that is other than a temporary decline in value, the respective 
investment is written down to recognize the loss. 
 

f) Non-financial assets: 
 
Non-financial assets include tangible capital assets, inventory and prepaids.  They are not available to 
discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of services.  
 

g) Tangible capital assets: 
 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly attributable to 
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the 
tangible capital assets, are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

 

Asset    Useful Life - Years 

 
Land                                                                                                                                    Unlimited 
Buildings and building improvements (asset under capital lease)  10  -   40 
Furniture, computer and office equipment  2  -   20 
Infrastructure  10  -   40 
Land improvements  10  -   30 
Vehicles and machinery        7  -   15 
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Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.  Assets under 
construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. 

     (i)  Contributions of tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of 
receipt and also are recorded as revenue. 

(ii)  Works of art and cultural and historic assets 

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these consolidated 
financial statements.  

    (iii) Interest capitalization 

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction of a 
tangible capital asset. 

    (iv) Leased tangible capital assets 

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property 
are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are accounted for as 
operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as incurred. 

     (v) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values 

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized at  
a nominal value.  Land is the only category where nominal values were assigned.   

 

h) Government grants: 
 

Government grants are recognized in the consolidated financial statements as revenues in the period in 
which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria 
have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made. 
                 

i) Deferred revenue - general: 
 

Deferred revenue represent user charges and fees which have been collected but for which the related 
services have yet to be performed. These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the fiscal period the 
services are performed. 
 

j) Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds 
 
The City receives gas taxes and transfer payments from other levels of government and development 
charges under the authority of Provincial Legislation and City By-Laws.  These funds by their nature are 
restricted in their use and until applied to applicable capital works are recorded as deferred revenue.  
Amounts applied to qualifying capital projects are recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are 
expended. 
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k) Taxation and related revenues: 
 
Taxation revenues are recorded at the time tax billings are issued. Additional property tax revenue can be 
added throughout the year, related to new properties that become occupied, or that become subject to 
property tax, after the return of the annual assessment roll used for billing purposes. The City may receive 
supplementary assessment rolls over the course of the year from MPAC, identifying new or omitted 
assessments. Property taxes for these supplementary and/or omitted amounts are then billed according 
to the approved tax rate for the property class. 

 
l) Investment income: 
 
Investment income earned on available surplus funds is reported as revenue in the period earned.  
Investment income earned on development charges and parkland obligatory reserve funds is added to 
the fund balance and forms part of respective deferred revenue balances. 

 

m) Pensions and employee benefits: 
 
The City accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement Fund (“OMERS”), a 
multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined contribution plan.  Vacation entitlements are 
accrued for as entitlements are earned.  Sick leave benefits are accrued where they are vested and 
subject to payout when an employee leaves the City’s employment. 
 
Other post-employment benefits and compensated absences are accrued in accordance with the 
projected benefit method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of salary 
escalation and retirement ages of employees. Actuarial valuations, where necessary for 
accounting purposes, are performed triennially. The discount rate used to determine the accrued 
benefit obligation was determined by reference to market interest rates at the measurement date 
on high-quality debt instruments with cash flows that match the timing and amount of expected 
benefit payments. 
 
Unamortized actuarial gains or losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected 
average remaining service life of the related employee groups.  Unamortized actuarial gains/ 
losses for event-triggered liabilities, such as those determined as claims related to Workplace 
Safety Insurance Board Act (“WSIB”) are amortized over the average expected period during 
which the benefits will be paid. 
 
Costs related to prior period employee services arising out of plan amendments are recognized in the 
period in which the plan is amended. 
 

n) Budget figures: 
 
The City budgets for the following items on the consolidated statement of operations: interest earned on 
reserves, developer contributed tangible capital assets and amortization expense.   
 
Brampton City Council completes separate budget reviews for its operating and capital project budgets 
each year. Both budgets are reflected in the consolidated statement of operations. 
 
The operating budget is based on projected operating expenses to be incurred during the current year. 
Budgets established for capital projects are set on a project-oriented basis, the costs of which may be 
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carried out over one or more fiscal years.  
 
 

o)  Use of estimates: 
 
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions.  This affects the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the year.  Significant estimates and assumptions include allowance for  
 
doubtful accounts for certain accounts receivable, carrying value of tangible capital assets, provisions 
accrued liabilities and obligations related to employee future benefits.  Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 
 
 

2. Adoption of new accounting policy: 
 
The City adopted PSAB Standard PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites effective January 1, 2015. 
Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, 
soil, water or sediment of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an 
environmental standard. This standard relates to sites that are not in productive use and sites in 
productive use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination. The City adopted this standard on 
a prospective basis. As a result of the adoption of this standard in 2015 the City recorded $900 of accrued 
liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
 
 

3. Future Accounting Pronouncements: 
 

These standards and amendments are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2015, and have 
therefore not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.  Management is currently 
assessing the impact of the following accounting standards updates on the future consolidated financial 
statements.   

 
a) PS 3210, Assets, provides a definition of assets and further expands that definition as it 

relates to control.  The standard also includes some disclosure requirements related to 

economic resources that are not recorded as assets to provide the user with better 

information about the types of resources available to the public sector entity.   This standard 

is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 

2018 year end). 

 
b) PS 3320, Contingent Assets, defines contingent assets and outlines two basic characteristics 

of contingent assets: (a) an existing condition or situation that is unresolved at the financial 

statement date, (b) an expected future event that will resolve the uncertainty as to whether an 

asset exists.  The standard also has specific disclosure requirements for contingent assets 

when the occurrence of the confirming event is likely.   This standard is effective for fiscal 

periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year end). 

 
 
 

6.1-20



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF BRAMPTON 
 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
(All dollar amounts are in 000s) 

 
The Corporation of the City of Brampton, Ontario, Canada                  Annual Report 2015       

 

 

 
c) PS 3380, Contractual Rights, defines contractual rights to future assets and revenue.  The 

standard requires that a public sector entity's contractual rights to certain type of revenue for 

a considerable period into the future or revenue that are abnormal in relation to the financial 

position or usual business operations should be disclosed in notes or schedules to the 

financial statements and should include descriptions about their nature and extent and the 

timing.  This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the 

City’s December 31, 2018 year end). 

 
d) PS 2200, Related Party Disclosures, establishes related party disclosure requirements and 

defines related parties.   This standard also specifies the information required to be disclosed 

including the type of transactions, amounts classified by financial statement category, the 

basis of measurement, and the amounts of any outstanding items, any contractual obligations 

and any contingent liabilities.  The standard also requires disclosure of related party 

transactions that have occurred where no amounts has been recognized.  This standard is 

effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 

year end). 

 
e) PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions, requires that assets and liabilities in restructuring 

transactions to be measured at their carrying amount.    It also prescribes financial statement 

presentation and disclosure requirements.    This standard is effective for fiscal periods 

beginning on or after April 1, 2018 (the City’s December 31, 2019 year end). 

 
f) PS 3420 Inter-Entity Transactions, relates to the measurement of related party transactions 

and includes a decision tree to support the standard.   Transactions are recorded at carrying 

amounts other than certain exceptions.     This standard is effective for fiscal periods 

beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year end). 

 
g) PS 3450, Financial Instruments, establishes the standards on accounting for and reporting all 

types of financial instruments including derivatives. The effective date of this standard has 

recently been deferred and it is now effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 

2019 (the City’s December 31, 2020 year end). 

 
h) PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation, establishes the standards on accounting for and 

reporting transactions that are denominated in a foreign currency.  The effective date of this 

standard has been deferred and is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 

2019 (the City’s December 31, 2020 year end). Earlier adoption is permitted. A public sector 

entity early adopting this standard must also adopt the new financial instruments standard.  

 

4. Cash and Investments: 
 
Cash and short-term investments of $513,235 (2014 - $477,619) includes short-term investments of 
$2,000 (2014 - $9,500) with a market value $2,022 (2014 - $9,667) at the end of the year.      
 
Long-term investments of $456,143 (2014 - $404,115) have a market value of $462,057 (2014 - 
$410,699), at the end of the year. 
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5. Other Assets:  
 
Included under other assets in the consolidated statement of financial position is $7,984 (2014 - $7,984) 
consisting of a construction loan of $6,000 advanced by the City towards the construction of  the 
Powerade Centre with a due date of August 31, 2034 and a further $1,984 representing advances  under 
the Loan and Priorities Agreement established in 1998.  
 
The City of Brampton is also the guarantor for the Powerade Centre Term Loan (previously a mortgage) 
held by the Royal Bank of Canada (RBC).  The Term Loan, which has an amortization period ending in 
August 2034, was renegotiated in 2014 with a 3-year term ending on March 21, 2017.  The Term Loan 
has an outstanding balance of $8,911 on December 31, 2015 (2014 - $9,248). 
 
 

6. Capital Lease Obligation: 
 
In 2014, the City entered into a capital lease arrangement (the “agreement”) on a building in downtown 
Brampton as part of the Southwest Quadrant Renewal Plan.   
 
The agreement requires equal monthly lease payments over a period of 25 years until 2039.  At the 
expiry of the agreement, the legal title of the building will be transferred to the City. 

 
Annual lease payments under the agreement are as follows: 
 
 
2016                                                                                                                                       $     8,354 
2017                                                                                                                                              8,354 
2018                                                                                                                                              8,354  
2019                                                                                                                                              8,354 
2020                                                                                                                                              8,354 
2021 and Thereafter                                                                                                                  155,239 
 
Total minimum lease payments                                                                                             $  197,009 
 
Less amount representing implicit interest at 7.59%                                                                  105,390 
  
  
Capital lease obligation                                                                                                           $  91,619 
 
 
 
In 2015, the interest expense of $7,005 (2014 - $2,948) is reported in the consolidated statement of 
operations. 
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7.  (a) Deferred revenue – general: 
 
Deferred revenue – general comprised program registration fees for parks and recreation programs, 
Transit advertising revenues applicable for the following year and unspent Provincial funding for capital 
projects.  As at December 31, 2015 the deferred revenue – general amounted to $3,339 (2014 - $3,275). 

 
 

     (b) Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds: 
 
Under PSAB accounting principles, obligatory reserve funds are to be reported as deferred revenue. This 
requirement is in place as Federal/ Provincial legislation and other City by-laws and agreements may 
restrict how these funds may be used and under certain circumstances these funds may possibly be 
refunded.  
 
As at December 31, 2015, obligatory reserve funds amounted to $316,710 (2014 - $306,450).  This 
balance includes unspent development charges, unspent gas tax receipts as well as unspent funding for 
specific infrastructure projects received from federal and provincial governments.  Also included in this 
balance are unamortized downtown incentive charges. 
 
The Downtown Incentive Program was initiated in 2000 with the intent of promoting new development in 
the downtown core.  As part of this program, development charges are waived and amortized by the City 
over a 25 year period.  As of December 31, 2015, unamortized downtown incentive charges were 
$11,690 (2014 - $12,330). 
 
Details of these deferred revenues are as follows: 
 

  
Opening 

 
Amount 
received 

Amount 
recognized as 

revenue 

 
Other 

 
Closing 

Developers $ 88,190 136,071 97,047 - $ 127,214 

Federal gas tax 56,674 27,761 37,211 - 47,224 

Provincial gas 
tax 

3,572 10,047 10,734  
- 

2,885 

Other 158,014 18,369 37,636         640 139,387 

 
Total 

 
$ 306,450 

 
192,248 

 
182,628 

 
        640 

 
$ 316,710 

 
 

8. Employee benefits and other liabilities: 
 
The City provides certain employee benefits, which will require funding in future periods. Under the sick-
leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate and employees may become entitled to cash 
payment when they leave the City’s employment. With respect to responsibilities under provisions of the 
Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Act (“WSIB”), the City has elected to be treated as a Schedule 2 
employer and remits payments to the WSIB as required to fund disability payments. An actuarial estimate 
of future liabilities has been completed and forms the basis for the estimated liability reported in these 
consolidated financial statements. 
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Employee benefits and other liabilities included in the consolidated financial statements are summarized 
below: 
                  2015                     2014 
WSIB        $ 9,713        $   9,323 
Vested sick leave benefits 16,293  15,165 
Vacation pay 11,375  11,399 
Non-pension post employment benefits  
Other liabilities 

19,102                               
11,880 

17,556 
10,839 

   

Total       $ 68,363                $ 64,282 

As at December 31, 2015, the City has allocated reserves and reserve funds of $26,225 (2014 - $23,681) 
to fund these obligations. 

The most recent full actuarial valuation was performed as at December 31, 2013. 
 
The following table sets out the actuarial results for each of the plans as at December 31: 
 

Item Non-Pension 
Post 

Employment 
Benefits 

Vested Sick 
Leave 

Benefits 
WSIB 

2015 
Total 

 

2014 
Total 

 

Accrued Benefit 
obligation (“ABO”), 
beginning of year 

$ 21,315 $ 19,599 $ 8,543 $ 49,457 $ 47,708 

Add: Current 
benefit costs 

1,074 1,530 1,165 3,769 3,561 

Add: Interest Cost 1,012 922 384 2,318 2,235 

Less: Current 
Benefit Payments 

1,094 1,925 1,163 4,182 4,046 

ABO, end of the 
year $ 22,307 $ 20,126 $ 8,929 $ 51,362 $ 49,458 

Unamortized 
actuarial 
gain/(loss) 

(3,205) (3,833) 784 (6,254) (7,414) 

Liability for 
Benefits, end of the 
year 

 
$ 19,102 

 
$ 16,293 

 
$ 9,713 

 
$ 45,108 $ 42,044 
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The actuarial valuations of the plans were based upon a number of assumptions about future events, 

which reflect management’s best estimates. The following represents the more significant assumptions 

made: 

 

         Non-Pension           Sick Leave               WSIB 

Expected inflation rate               2.00%               2.00%                2.00% 

Expected level of salary 

increases 
              3.00%               3.00%                  n/a 

Interest discount rate               4.75%               4.75%                 4.50% 

Dental premium rate 

increase 
              4.00%                 n/a                  n/a 

Health care premium 

rates increase 
              5.43%                 n/a                 6.00% 

Expected average 

remaining service life 
                15                  14                  n/a 

                                                       
 

9. Pension agreements:  
 
The City makes contributions to OMERS, which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of all permanent, 
full-time members of its staff.  The plan is a defined benefit plan, which specifies the amount of the 
retirement benefit to be received by the employees, based on the length of service and rates of pay. The 
City accounts for its participation in OMERS, as a defined contribution plan. 
 
The amount contributed to OMERS for 2015 was $24,408 (2014 - $23,663) for current service and is 
included as an expense on the consolidated statement of operations.  Employee contributions totaled 
$24,408 (2014 - $ 23,663). 
 
The City is current with all payments to OMERS, therefore, there is neither a surplus nor deficit with the 
pension plan contributions.  However, the OMERS pension plan had a deficit at December 31, 2015 of $7 
billion based on actuarial valuation of plan assets.   
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10.  Accumulated Surplus: 
 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus, including funds committed for capital projects, 
and reserves and reserve funds as follows: 

 
 
                                                                                                                            2015                    2014 
Tangible capital assets                                                        $ 3,508,415         $ 3,380,587 
Surplus funds from committed capital projects and other                       169,834               148,905 

 
                                                                                            3,678,249              3,544,770   

       
Reserves                                                                                                          67,676                 51,078 

 
Reserve Funds                                                                                              221,261                207,697 

 
 
Total                                                                                                         $  3,967,186         $ 3,788,267 

 
 
 
 

11. Tax Revenues: 
 
Property tax billings are prepared by the City based on the assessment roll as delivered by MPAC.  
MPAC is an independent body established by the Ontario Government’s Municipal Property Assessment 
Corporation Act, 1997.  A province wide re-assessment based on a January 1, 2008 market value was 
undertaken by MPAC for use in taxation years 2009 through 2012. During this four year period any 
assessment increases compared to the previous 2005 assessment were phased-in equally.  The City 
applies the appropriate tax rate to the assessment in the production of the property tax bills.  However, 
the property tax revenue and tax receivables of the City are subject to measurement uncertainty as a 
number of appeals submitted by ratepayers for adjustments to assessment have yet to be heard by the 
Assessment Review Board.  An allowance has been recorded to provide for possible negative 
adjustments.  Any billing adjustments made necessary by the determination of such changes will be 
recognized in the fiscal year they are determined and the effect shared with regional government and 
school boards as appropriate.   
 
The Province enacted legislation together with regulations, the Fairness for Property Taxpayers Act, 1998 
(Bill 79) in December 1998, which was replaced in 2000 by Bill 140, “Continued Protection for Property 
Taxpayers Act”. These pieces of legislation limited assessment-related increases in property tax bills to 5 
per cent annually for commercial, industrial and multi-residential classes of property until the affected 
properties were taxed at a level equivalent to taxes based on their actual current assessed value. 
 
Properties with decreases are liable to a “clawback” of some of the decrease to finance the “capping” of 
properties with increases. 
 
Effective for the 2005 tax year, Bill 83 “Budget Measures Act” raises the upper limit of assessment-related 
increases in property tax bills from the 5 per cent maximum in Bill 79 and Bill 140 to 10 per cent annually 
for commercial, industrial and multi-residential property classes. 
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Further legislation was passed in 2009 creating additional options in the capped property classes.  These 
provisions allowed municipalities to remove any properties that in the prior taxation year reached CVA-
level taxes from the capping program.  Also, properties that cross over from being capped properties in 
the prior year to clawback properties in the current year or from being clawback properties in the prior 
year to capped properties in the current year are removed from the capping program. 

  

12.    Expenses by object: 
 
The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the consolidated statement of operations by 
object: 

                                                                              2015 Budget            2015           2014 
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits                        $ 351,958 $ 345,602 $ 334,507 
Materials and supplies                                                 67,940     69,802 69,834 
Contracted services                                                     98,286     98,350 96,870 
Rents and financial expenses                                      15,898       16,832 12,695 
Government transfers                                                       866              927 1,135 
Amortization                                                               117,579        119,939 118,399 
Other                                                                                    -            261 193 

Total expenses                                                      $ 652,527         $ 651,713 $ 633,633 

 
 

13.  Trust funds: 
 
Trust funds administered by the City amounted to $29,748 (2014 - $29,530) are presented in the separate 
financial statements of trust funds balances and operations.  As such balances are held in trust by the 
City for the benefit of others, they are not presented as part of the City’s consolidated financial position or 
operations. 

 
The City administers the following trust funds: 
 

 Cemeteries Care and Maintenance Trust 

 Developers’ Performance Deposits Trust 

 Developer Front End Financing Trust  

 Brampton Marketing Board, Greater Toronto Area and Greater Toronto     
       Marketing Alliance 

 Brampton Sports Hall of Fame 

 
 
14.   Public liability insurance: 
 
The City is self-insured for all lines of coverage including public liability, errors and omissions and 
Brampton Transit claims up to $500.  This is for any number of claims arising out of a single occurrence.  
Outside coverage is in place for claims in excess of these limits. 
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The City has created a reserve fund for self-insurance which as at December 31, 2015 had a $10,727 
balance (2014 - $8,559) and is reported on the consolidated statement of financial position.  Claims 
settled during the year amounting to $2,864 (2014 - $3,329) have been provided for from the reserve 
fund, and are accordingly reported as expenses on the consolidated statement of operations. 
 
In the normal course of its operations, the City is subject to various litigation and claims.  Where 
management has assessed the likelihood of the success of the claim as more likely than not and where a 
reasonable estimate as to the exposure can be made, an accrual has been recorded in these 
consolidated financial statements.  In some instances, the ultimate outcome of these claims cannot be 
determined at this time.  However, the City’s management believes that the ultimate disposition of these 
matters will not have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position. 
 
 

15.     Provincial Offences Administration: 
 
The Provincial Offences Act (“POA”) is a procedural law for administering and prosecuting provincial 
offences, including those committed under the Highway Traffic Act, Compulsory Automobile Insurance 
Act, Trespass to Property Act, Liquor Licence Act, Municipal By-laws and minor federal offences.  The 
administration of POA was downloaded to the City from the Ontario Ministry of Attorney General in June 
1999.  
 
The revenues of the combined operations of the Court House and City Hall and revenues collected on 
behalf of the City at other POA court sites in the Province of Ontario consist of fines levied under Parts I 
and III for POA charges and amounted to $8,218 for the year ended December 31, 2015. (2014 - $7,441).   
 
The operating costs for the administration of the POA for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted 
to $5,557 (2014 - $5,324), resulting in a net contribution of $2,661 (2014 - $2,117) exclusive of capital 
asset additions. 
 
The City constructed the POA Court-Hearing Facility, a permanent facility to accommodate the POA court 
operation (including courtrooms and accessory uses, an administration office and related requirements, 
on-site office space for prosecutors, a police bureau and accessory uses) and hearing rooms, which can 
be used for Ontario Municipal Board and Assessment Review Board hearings on a regular basis.  The 
POA Court-Hearing Facility became operational in August 2004.  The total cost of design and 
construction including acquisition of land amounted to $10.7 million.  Funding for the POA Court-Hearing 
Facility has been provided from tax-based reserves. 
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16.  Tangible capital assets: 
 
The City has identified six major asset categories: Buildings and building improvements; Furniture, 
Computer and office equipment; Infrastructure; Land; Land improvements; Vehicles and machinery and 
Leased building.   
 

 

                                                                                 
  December 31,          December 31, 
Cost                                           2014                   Additions            Disposals       Transfers               2015 

 
    
Land $  1,608,632 $ 19,497 $    - $    -   $1,628,129 
Asset under capital lease               93,500                             -                         -                      -                93,500 
Buildings and building  

improvements    600,783 24,301 - -        625,084 
Furniture, computer and 

office equipment 161,090 11,558 (67,651) -  104,997 
Infrastructure 1,762,458 127,818 (391) - 1,889,885 
Land improvements 81,065 3,964 (4,997) - 80,032 
Vehicles and machinery 274,868 27,937 (8,092) - 294,713 
Assets under construction 72,941 176,953 - (144,000) 105,894 
 

Total $ 4,655,337 $ 392,028 $ (81,131) $     (144,000) $ 4,822,234 

 
 
 

                                                                                                          
Accumulated                             December 31,                                Amortization                   December 31, 
amortization                                     2014                        Disposals                   expense                               2015__          
     
Land                                        $                   -               $                 -               $             -                     $                   - 
Asset under capital lease                     1,558                                   -                    3,740                                  5,298 
Buildings and building  

improvements                               205,614                                  -                   23,331                              228,945 
Furniture, computer and  

office equipment                           116,136                         (67,564)                 14,734                                63,306 
Infrastructure                                    776,452                              (368)                 52,931                              829,015 
Land improvements                            33,026                           (4,904)                  3,927                                32,049 
Vehicles and machinery                   141,964                         (8,034)                   21,276                              155,206 
      
 

Total                                           $ 1,274,750                    $   (80,870)              $ 119,939                      $ 1,313,819 
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Net book value                                                                    December 31, 2014                        December 31, 2015  
 
Land                                                                                            $  1,608,632                                    $   1,628,129 
Asset under capital lease                                                                     91,942                                              88,202 
Buildings and building  

improvements                                               395,169                  396,139 
Furniture, computer and 

 office equipment                                                                              44,955                       41,691 
Infrastructure                                                                                      986,006                  1,060,870 
Land improvements                                                                              48,039                       47,983 
Vehicles and machinery                                                                     132,904                     139,507 
Assets under construction                                                                    72,940                     105,894 
 

Total                                                                                             $ 3,380,587                                       $ 3,508,415 

 

      a) Assets under construction 

Assets under construction having a value of $105,894 (2014 - $72,940) have not been amortized.  

Amortization of these assets will commence when the assets are put into service. 

b) Contributed tangible capital assets 

Contributed capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution.  

Contributed capital assets are mainly comprised of infrastructure assets acquired through subdivision 

assumptions.  The value of contributed assets received during the year is $76,271 (2014 - $115,410). 

 
 
17.  Segmented Information 
 
The City is a multifaceted municipal government that delivers a wide range of services that enhance 
quality of life to its citizens.  For additional information see the Consolidated Schedule of Segment 
Disclosure. 
 
City services are provided by various divisions whose activities are organized in the following segments 
for management reporting purposes:  

 
General government 
General Government is comprised of Mayor and Councilor’s as well as Corporate Management and 
Support sections.   
 
The departments within Corporate Management and Support sections are responsible for adopting 
bylaws and administrative policies; risk management; providing effective financial reporting, planning and 
controls; developing and maintaining flexible computer networks and resources to deliver information and 
telecommunications to City employees and the citizens of Brampton; acquiring, managing and disposing 
City assets; levying and collecting taxes.    
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Protection to persons and property 
Protection Services delivers Fire Emergency Services, By-law and Enforcement and POA administration. 
The mandate of the Fire department is to provide fire protection and emergency response but also 
superior level of Fire Prevention and Public Education.  By-law and Enforcement assist in maintaining 
Brampton as a safe, healthy and attractive City by responding to public concerns, patrolling City property 
and enforcing the City’s by-laws.   
 
POA’s mandate encompass the administration and prosecution of provincial offences, including those 
committed under the Highway Traffic Act, Compulsory Automobile Insurance Act, Trespass to Property 
Act, Liquor Licence Act, Municipal By-laws and minor federal offences. 
 
Transportation services 
The Works department manages various infrastructure projects as part of a 10-year capital program to 
expand and improve the City’s road network and transportation infrastructure.  In addition, major functions 
also include maintenance of road system (road resurfacing and snow clearing) and all associated 
infrastructure such as sidewalks, bridges and curbs. 
 
Brampton Transit is responsible for providing efficient and effective local public transportation service. 
 
Environmental services  
Environmental Services are delivered by staff in the Works department. Primary responsibility of this 
section is catch basin and storm sewer maintenance.  In addition, the department performs watercourse 
maintenance in order to ensure public safety and environmental controls are in place. Watercourse 
maintenance activities include controlling erosion, the removal of garbage and debris and responding to 
spills and illegal dumping to ensure water quality and proper cleanup. 
 
 
Health, social and family services 
Health, Social and Family services comprised cemetery operations and assistance to aged persons.  
Assistance to aged persons includes senior’s education tax rebate, senior snow clearing subsidy as well 
as maintenance of seniors centre. 
 
Recreation and cultural services 
The Community Services department is responsible for the delivery of Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
services.  The Parks Operations division maintains all parks, boulevards, sports fields, trees, horticultural 
displays, pathways and open space. This division provides the residents of Brampton with safe, attractive, 
outdoor facilities delivered through a highly skilled and versatile workforce. 
 
The Recreation and Culture division is responsible for the delivery of all culture and recreation programs 
offered by the City and the day-to-day operation of all theatres and recreation buildings. This division 
provides the City’s front-line contact with the citizens of Brampton in Culture, Recreation Facilities and 
Programs providing many activities that enhance the richness and quality of life for residents. 
 
This section also contributes towards the information needs of the City’s citizens through the provision of 
library services by the Brampton Public Library Board. 
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Planning and development services 
The Planning and Development Department responsibilities encompass planning, design and 
development approvals, management of building permit processes, long-range Brampton official plan and 
growth management. This department is also responsible for providing advice to City Council, the public, 
and the development/building industry with respect to a broad range of land use planning, development 
applications, urban design, public buildings and open space/facility development issues, development 
engineering, and transportation planning. 

 
 
18.  Commitments: 
 
The City leases facilities and equipment under operating leases expiring beyond 2020. The minimum 
amounts payable under these arrangements are as follows: 
 
 
 
2016                                                                                                                                          $   2,230 
2017                                                                                                                                               1,762 
2018                                                                                                                                               1,523  
2019                                                                                                                                               1,363 
2020                                                                                                                                               1,028 
2021 and thereafter                                                                                                                      17,455 
 
                                                                                                                                                  $ 25,361 
  
 
Excluded from these amounts is the capital lease obligation outlined in Note 6. 
 
 

19.  Budget Data: 
 
Budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements are based upon the 2015 operating and 
capital budgets as approved by Council and adopted by the City at the April 8, 2015 meeting.  
Adjustments to budgeted values were required to provide comparative budget values based on the 
components of full accrual basis of accounting.  The chart below reconciles the approved operating 
budget with the budget figures presented in these consolidated financial statements.  
 

Revenue: 
Approved operating budget                                                             $ 570,550 
 
Less: Contributions from reserve funds                                               26,874 
Less: Other                                                                                               562 
Add:  Development levies earned                                                      149,064 
  and other restricted capital contributions 
Add:  Project budget for grants and subsidies                                       4,440 
Add:  Interest earned on reserves                                                          7,600 
Add:  Developer contributed assets                                                   136,312 
 
Total reported on Consolidated Financial Statements                    $ 840,530  
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Expenses: 
Approved operating budget                                                             $ 570,550 
 
Less: Contributions to reserve funds                                                   70,072 
Add:  Other                                                                                            4,523 
Add:  Operating projects budget                                                          29,947 
Add:  Amortization                                                                              117,579 
 
Total reported on Consolidated Financial Statements                    $ 652,527    
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General 

government

Protection to 

persons and 

property

Transportation 

services

Environmental 

services

 Health, social 

and family 

services

Recreation and 

cultural services

Planning and 

development 

services 

2015             

Total

2014             

Total

REVENUES

     Property taxation and taxation from other governments 396,111$        -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$                    371$                396,482$       362,325$        

     User charges 8,555              22,622           51,856               -                     783                28,105                2,699               114,620         111,357          

     Government grants -                  12,667               -                     65                  512                     224                  13,468           26,509            

     Development levies earned 1,466              8,026             134,761             -                     -                 36,250                2,125               182,628         97,344            

     and other restricted capital contributions -                  -                 -                     -                     -                 -                      -                   -                 -                  

     Investment income (including Reserves and Reserve Funds) 19,576            -                 -                     -                     -                 102                     5                      19,683           17,676            

     Penalties, fines and interest 9,706              11,427           -                     -                     1                    554                     -                   21,688           21,259            

     Developer contributed tangible capital assets -                  -                 76,271               -                     -                 -                      -                   76,271           115,410          

     Other 226                 248                4,926                 -                     16                  332                     44                    5,792             6,712              

     Total Revenues 435,640          42,323           280,481             -                     865                65,855                5,468               830,632         758,592          

EXPENSES

     Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 57,971            79,358           115,132             1,207                 1,756             70,904                19,274             345,602         334,507          

     Materials 14,986            4,053             33,892               38                      435                14,469                1,929               69,802           69,834            

     Contracted services 23,197            3,367             42,787               5,104                 218                22,112                1,565               98,350           96,870            

     Rents and financial expenses 13,275            1,482             1,251                 -                     9                    726                     89 16,832           12,695            

     Government transfers (57,779)           7,189             17,835               443                    588                30,440                2,211               927                1,135              

     Amortization 9,148 5,207 61,904 13,389 666 27,287 2,338 119,939         118,399          

     Other -                  -                 23                      221 17                    261                193                 

     Total Expenses 60,798 100,656 272,824 20,181 3,672 166,159 27,423 651,713 633,633          

Annual surplus (deficit) 374,842$        (58,333)$        7,657$               (20,181)$            (2,807)$          (100,304)$           (21,955)$          178,919$       124,959$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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4100 Yonge Street, Suite 200 
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KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers 
of The Corporation of the City of Brampton 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the trust funds of The Corporation of the 
City of Brampton, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the 
statement of operations and fund balances for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the trust funds of The Corporation of the City of Brampton as at December 31, 2015, and its results of 
operations and fund balances for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
 
May 6, 2016 
Toronto, Canada 
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TRUST FUNDS

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 Total 2014 Total

Financial Assets and Liabilities

ASSETS
Cash 683,740                    28,347,444              306,364                        105,894               51,920                                  29,495,362           29,279,954             
Accounts receivable 626                           3,089                       247                               85                        41                                         4,088                    4,257                      
Subtotal 684,366                    28,350,534              306,611                        105,979               51,961                                  29,499,451           29,284,211             

Investments, at cost (market - $260,623  2014 - $266,898):

Municipal Bonds 257,544                    -                           -                                -                       -                                        257,544                257,544                  
Subtotal 257,544                    -                           -                                -                       -                                        257,544                257,544                  

 
Long-term receivables -                           -                           -                                -                       -                                        -                        -                         
Total Financial Assets 941,910                    28,350,534              306,611                        105,979               51,961                                  29,756,995           29,541,755             

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -                           2,196                       -                                -                       -                                        2,196                    -                         
Due to City Revenue Fund 1,038                        -                           -                                5,785                   -                                        6,823                    11,261                    
Total Liabilities 1,038                        2,196                       -                                5,785                   -                                        9,018                    11,261                    

   

Net financial resources 940,872                    28,348,338              306,611                        100,194               51,961                                  29,747,977           29,530,494             

Fund balances 940,872                    28,348,338              306,611                        100,194               51,961                                  29,747,977           29,530,494             

    
See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Brampton Marketing Board, 
Greater Toronto Area and 

Greater Toronto Marketing 
Alliance Trust Funds

Cemeteries Care and 
Maintenance Trust 

Funds

Developers' 
Performance 

Deposits Trust

Developer Front End 
Financing Trust Fund

Brampton Sports 
Hall of Fame
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF BRAMPTON
TRUST FUNDS

Statement of Financial Activities and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended December 31, 2015, with comparative figures for 2014

2015 Total 2014 Total

Revenue

Monuments and markers deposits 1,500                        -                              -                             -                    -                                         1,500               2,150               
Perpetual care deposits 6,869                        -                              -                             -                    -                                         6,869               5,164               
Other deposits - Trusts 22,000                         105,226            127,226           2,000               
Gain on sale of investments -                            -                              -                             -                    -                                         -                   74                    
Performance deposits received -                            3,163,267                    -                             -                    -                                         3,163,267        7,572,219        
Subtotal 8,369                        3,185,267                    -                             105,226            -                                         3,298,862        7,581,607        
Interest Income 19,469                      22,349                         3,175                          754                   539                                        46,286             51,025             
Total Revenues 27,838                      3,207,616                    3,175                          105,980            539                                        3,345,149        7,632,632        

Expenditures

Transfers to City Revenue Fund:
Maintenance Contribution 15,961                      -                              -                             -                                         15,961             22,234             
Professional Services/Audit -                            -                              -                             5,785                5,785               -                   
Interest Transfer -                            22,349                         -                             -                                         22,349             20,550             
Administration Charges 3,508                        -                              -                             -                                         3,508               3,439               
Subtotal 19,469                      22,349                         -                             5,785                -                                         47,603             46,223             

Return of performance deposits -                            3,007,118                    -                             -                                         3,007,118        6,813,387        
Payments on behalf of developers -                            72,942                         -                             -                                         72,942             1,221,740        
Total Expenditures 19,469                      3,102,409                    -                             5,785                -                                         3,127,663        8,081,350        

Increase (decrease) in net financial resource 8,369                        105,207                       3,175                          100,195            539                                        217,484           (448,718)          

Fund balances, beginning of year 932,503                    28,243,131                  303,436                      -                    51,423                                   29,530,494      29,979,212      

Fund balances, end of year 940,872                    28,348,338                  306,611                      100,195            51,962                                   29,747,978      29,530,494      

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Brampton Marketing Board, 
Greater Toronto Area and 

Greater Toronto Marketing 
Alliance Trust Funds

Cemeteries Care and 
Maintenance Trust 

Funds

Developers' 
Performance Deposits 

Trust

Developer Front End 
Financing Trust Fund

Brampton Sports 
Hall of Fame
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF BRAMPTON 
TRUST FUNDS 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 
 
The financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Brampton are prepared 
by management in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for 
local governments as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board 
(“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (“CPA Canada”). 
Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows: 

 
 
1.   Significant accounting policies: 
 
      Revenue recognition: 
 

(a) Receipts, other than interest and letters of credit receipts, are reported on 
receipt.  Interest income and letters of credit receipts are recorded on the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

 
(b) Returns of performance deposits are reported in the periods in which they 

are paid either directly by the Trust Funds or through The Corporation of 
the City of Brampton (the “City”) funds.  All other expenses are reported 
on the accrual basis of accounting. 

 
The accrual basis of accounting recognizes expenses as they are incurred 
and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and the 
creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

 
(c) Investments, including any term deposits not available on demand, are 

reported at the lower of amortized cost and market value. 
 
2.   Cemeteries Care and Maintenance Trust Funds: 
 

The City maintains several cemeteries, including the following which have 
Care and Maintenance Trust Funds which the City administers:  
Brampton, Page, Hilltop Gore, Shiloh, Alloa, Grahamsville, Zion, Mt. 
Olivet, St. John – Castlemore, St. John – Snelgrove, St. Mary – Tullamore 
and Eventide.  Interest income attributable to each of the individual Trust 
Funds that is received during any particular year is transferred to the City 
Revenue Fund in that year to partially offset the maintenance cost for 
each cemetery to which the individual Trust Funds relate.  The operations 
and investments of the fund are undertaken by the City in accordance with 
the regulation of the “Cemeteries Act (Revised).” 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF BRAMPTON 
TRUST FUNDS 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 
 
3.   Developers’ Performance Deposits Trust: 
 

The Developers’ Performance Deposits Trust was established for the 
following purposes: 

 
(a) To hold performance deposits made by individual parties to the City as 

assurance that specific obligations agreed upon are fulfilled.  Once 
fulfilled, the deposit held is returned to the respective party. 

 
3.   Developers’ Performance Deposits Trust (continued): 
 

(b) When a party develops a property in the City, generally a letter of credit is 
obtained from the party’s bank, which provides a guarantee to the City 
that the contract will be completed as specified.  Otherwise, the City is 
able to draw upon the letter of credit and to deposit the funds in the Trust 
to be later used to pay a third party to complete the contract. 

 
4.   Developer Front End Financing Trust Fund: 
 

The Front End Financing Trust Fund was established in 1993 to receive 
contributions from developers for studies and construction of services 
which not only benefit their particular development, but will also ultimately 
benefit other future development.  The Front End Developers provide the 
initial financing in lieu of the City for the required studies and capital works 
and enter into agreements with the City to recover the costs associated 
with other benefiting landowners on a best effort basis. 
 

5.   Brampton Marketing Board, Greater Toronto Area and Greater Toronto     
      Marketing Alliance: 
 

The Brampton Marketing Board (the “BMB”), the Greater Toronto Area 
(the “GTA”) and the Greater Toronto Marketing Alliance (the “GTMA”) 
Trust Funds were established to hold contributions made from the 
development and business community.  The Trust Funds were formed as 
partnerships between the BMB, the GTA and the GTMA.  Their mandate 
is to attain corporate and municipal sponsorship of marketing initiatives for 
the City, the GTA and the GTMA. 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF BRAMPTON 
TRUST FUNDS 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year ended December 31, 2015 
 
 
6.   Brampton Sports Hall of Fame: 
 

The Brampton Sports Hall of Fame (the “BSHF”) is a non-profit 
organization that was founded to recognize and honour the history of sport 
in the City of Brampton and in particular those persons who have made 
outstanding contributions and achievements in the development of sport 
within the community.  The BSHF will collect, preserve, research, exhibit 
and promote all those objects, images and histories which are determined 
to be significant to the development of sport in the City of Brampton. 
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* This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the Audit Committee. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or 

damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third party or for 

any other purpose. 

Executive summary 
Purpose of this report*  
The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to 

assist you, as a member of the Audit Committee, 

in your review of the results of our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements (the “financial 

statements”) of the Corporation of the City of 

Brampton (“the City”) as at and for the year ended 

December 31, 2015 

This Audit Findings Report builds on the Audit Plan 

we presented to the Audit Committee on February 

23, 2015. 

Changes from the Audit Plan 
There have been no significant changes regarding 

our audit from the Audit Planning Report 

previously presented to you. 

 

Other matters  
We have highlighted other significant matters that 

we would like to bring to your attention.            

See page 4 

Finalizing the audit  
As of May 6, 2016, we have completed the audit 

of the financial statements and received evidence 

of approval of the consolidated financial 

statements from the City’s Acting Chief 

Administrative Officer (individual delegated 

authority to approve the financial statements).  

Completion of our subsequent event procedures 

up our auditor’s report date.    

 

Our audit report is dated the date of approval of 

the consolidated financial statements by the City’s 

Acting Chief Administrative Officer on May 6, 

2016.         

Adjustments and 
differences  
We did not identify any adjustments that were 

communicated to management and subsequently 

corrected in the financial statements. 

 

Critical accounting 
estimates 
Overall, we are satisfied with the reasonability of 

critical accounting estimates.  

The critical areas of estimates relate to allowance 

for doubtful accounts for certain accounts and tax 

receivables, carrying value of tangible capital 

assets, provisions for accrued liabilities and 

obligations related to employee future benefits.  
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Other matters 

Other matters  
We have highlighted below other significant matters that we would like to bring to your attention: 

Matter  KPMG comment 

Contaminated Sites • Effective January 1, 2015, the City adopted Public Sector (“PS”) Accounting Standard PS 3260 Liability for 
Remediation of Contaminated Sites, as highlighted in financial statements Note 2.     

• Management elected to adopt the standard on a prospective basis.   
• KPMG reviewed Management’s policy and process to ensure compliance with PS 3260 including review of 

the City’s policy over identification, recognition and measurement of contaminated sites liability for the year 
ended December 31, 2015, and review of Council meeting minutes to validate completeness of the 
contaminated sites inventory.    

• As the impact of adopting the new accounting standard in 2015, the City recorded $900,000 of accrued 
liability in the 2015 financial statements.    

Ontario Ice Storm Assistance 
Program (“Assistance Program”) 

• As part of the Assistance Program, the City reported a $17.1M of grant receivable from the Ministry of 
Municipal Affairs and Housing (The “Ministry”) as at December 31, 2014 related to incremental cost 
incurred during the 2013 ice storm.  

• During fiscal year 2015, the City received $6.6M from the Ministry.    KPMG noted that the City 
appropriately expensed $1.4M of the grants receivable that was previously setup in fiscal year 2014 as the 
amount is determined not to be recoverable under the Assistance Program. This assessment is based on 
new information available to the City in 2015 subsequent to the finalization of the 2014 financial statements.    

• As at December 31, 2015, management reported $9.2M of grants receivable owing from the Ministry.   
Subsequent to year-end in 2016, the City collected the $9.2M in full.   

• KPMG reviewed the cash receipts received during 2015 and subsequent to year end.   No issues are noted.   
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Asset under construction 
(“WIP”) transfer 

• During our sample testing on Assets under construction transfer, we identified one incident where 
management had transferred certain internal labour pre-engineering costs to active Tangible capital assets 
(“TCA”) in 2015 related to a project that was closed in 2011.    

• The discrepancies resulted in misstatement between Assets under construction (“WIP”) and active TCA as 
reported in the financial statement note disclosure and understatement in amortization expense for 2011 to 
2014 fiscal years.   

• Management’s analysis indicated that the understatement in amortization expense by approximately 
$30,000 on a cumulative basis.  In reviewing management analysis, we noted that, the impact on 
amortization expense is not significant to the financial statements and therefore, we did not propose an 
audit misstatement in this regard.  

• Our discussion with management indicated that other capitalized costs related to this project were 
appropriately transferred to active TCA in 2011.  

• In addition, we expanded our sample size on the WIP transfer testing.   We did not identify any errors in the 
additional WIP transfer samples tested.  

• Management performed further analysis in this regard and noted that total internal labour pre-engineering 
costs residing in WIP at December 31, 2015 were not significant.  Therefore, we concluded that the risk of 
material misstatement is low in this regard.   

• Refer to the Process improvement observation section for more discussion on this matter.   

Contingent Liabilities • The Chartered Professional Accountants Handbook PS3300 Contingent Liabilities requires that the City 
recognize a liability when “…it is likely that a future event will confirm that a liability has been incurred at the 
date of the financial statements; and the amount can be reasonably estimated.” 

• At any point in time, the City is subject to a number of matters which could potentially result in the 
determination of a contingent liability as defined above, including, but not limited to matters such as legal 
claims, contract settlement accruals etc. 

• KPMG has reviewed the City’s assessments of contingent liabilities and the process employed to develop 
and record the related estimated liabilities. Where applicable, KPMG discussed with the individuals 
responsible for the process and is satisfied that the methodology used is rational, consistent with the 
approach taken in prior years and has been appropriately reviewed. 

• As these items are resolved, it is possible that the final amounts recorded for these liabilities may change, 
however the amounts currently recorded represent management’s best estimates of exposure given the 
information presently available. 
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Adjustments and differences  
Corrected adjustments 
We did not identify any adjustments that were communicated to management and subsequently corrected in the financial statements 

Uncorrected differences 
We did not identify differences that remain uncorrected.  

  

Adjustments and 

differences identified 

during the audit have been 

categorized as Corrected 

“adjustments” or 

Uncorrected 

“differences.” These 

include disclosure 

adjustments and 

differences. 

Professional standards 

require that we request of 

management and the audit 

committee that all 

identified adjustments or 

differences be corrected.  
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Data & Analytics in Audit  
Area(s) of 
focus 

D&A tools and routines   

Journal entry 
testing 

 

• We utilized data analytics in the audit to evaluate the completeness of the journal entry population 
through a roll-forward of selected cash, accounts receivable, tangible capital assets, and revenue and 
reserve G/L accounts. This consists of a summation of all automated and manual journal entries posted 
in the G/L during the fiscal year and comparison of the calculated amounts to the account balances as 
at and for the year ended December 31, 2015 as reported by management. 

• The results of data analytics did not identify any significant audit adjustments.  

 

Search for 
Unrecorded 
Liabilities  

• We utilized data analytics in the audit to perform audit procedures surrounding cutoff of accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities as at December 31, 2015 as follows: 
 

- Review of AP subledger activities as at April 14, 2016 (date of performing this procedure) and 
cheque registers related to period subsequent to year-end to identify if there are any 
significant transactions subsequent to year-end for further testing on appropriateness of 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities cutoff as at December 31, 2015.    
 

• In addition, we utilized data analytics in the audit to perform comparison of AP subledger activities as at 
April 14, 2016 (date of performing this procedure) with the cheque registers related to period 
subsequent to year-end to identify if there are any duplicate invoices.      

• The results of data analytics did not identify any significant audit adjustments or control deficiency.    

 

 
  

We have summarized 

areas of the audit where 

D&A tools and routines 

were used.  
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D&A
ENABLED

AUDIT 
METHODOLOGY

 

Turning data into value  
KPMG continues to make significant investments in our Data & Analytics (D&A)  

capabilities to help enhance audit quality and provide actionable insight to our clients by unlocking  

the rich information that businesses hold.  When D&A is applied to the audit,  

it enables us to test complete data populations and understand the business reasons 

behind outliers and anomalies. Advancements in D&A tools allow us to analyze data  

at more granular levels, focusing on higher risk areas of the audit and developing insights  

you can then leverage to improve compliance, potentially uncover fraud, manage risk and more.  

 

KPMG is enhancing the audit 

The combination of our proven industry experience, technical know-how and external data  

allows us to focus our audit on the key business risks, while providing relevant insights of value to you.  

• Focuses manual audit effort on 
key exceptions and identified risk 
areas 

AUDIT QUALITY 

FOR THE AUDIT 

• Helping you see your business from 
a different perspective 

• How effectively is your organization 
using your systems? 

ACTIONABLE INSIGHT 

FOR YOUR BUSINESS 

6.1-49



City of Brampton Audit Findings Report for the year ended December 31,  2015 9 
 

 

 

Process improvement observations  
As part of the audit process, we communicate opportunities for improvements in financial or operational processes or controls should we become aware of them during 

our audit.  

 Current year process improvement point:  

Description  Potential effect and recommendation  Management Comments (to be updated) 

As noted in the “Other Matters” 
section, we noted one incident where 
the transfer of internal labour pre-
engineering costs to active TCA took 
place in 2015 when the related project 
was closed in 2011.       

The late transfer to depreciable assets 
resulted in misstatement between 
Assets under construction (“WIP”) and 
active TCA as reported in the financial 
statement note disclosure and 
understatement in amortization 
expense.     

 

We recommend that management 
continue to analyze WIP balance to 
ensure that all costs related to closed 
projects are transferred to active TCA in 
the year when the respective project is 
closed in order to decrease the 
delay between this activity and the 
appropriate timing of recognition. 

 

Management agrees with the recommendation.   Additional 
report listing work in progress internal labour charges will be 
created and analyzed on a quarterly basis to ensure that all 
costs related to closed projects are transferred to TCA in the 
year the project is closed.  In addition, all capital internal labour 
recovery journals will indicate specific scope of work to ensure 
they are associated with corresponding vendor charges 
 
Depreciation is a non-cash expense and does not change how the tax 
levy is calculated. 
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Appendix 1: Required communications  
In accordance with professional standards, there are a number of communications that are required during the course of and upon completion of our audit. These include: 

• Auditors’ report – the conclusion of our audit is set out in our draft auditors’ 

report  

• Management representation letter –In accordance with professional 

standards, copies of the management representation letter are provided to 

the Audit Committee.  Management have provided you with a copy of the 

representation letter for the audit of the financial statements 
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Appendix 2: Audit Quality  
and Risk Management  
KPMG maintains a system of quality control designed to reflect our drive and 

determination to deliver independent, unbiased advice and opinions, and also 

meet the requirements of Canadian professional standards.  

Quality control is fundamental to our business and is the responsibility of every 

partner and employee. The following diagram summarises the six key elements 

of our quality control systems.  

Visit http://www.kpmg.com/Ca/en/services/Audit/Pages/Audit-Quality-Resources.aspx for more information. 

 

  Independence, 
integrity, ethics 
and objectivity 

Personnel 
management 

Acceptance & 
continuance of 

clients / 
engagements 

Engagement 
performance 

standards 

Independent 
monitoring 

Other risk 
management 

quality controls 

• Other controls include: 

– Before the firm issues its audit 
report, the Engagement Quality 
Control Reviewer reviews the 
appropriateness of key elements 
of publicly listed client audits. 

– Technical department and 
specialist resources provide real-
time support to audit teams in 
the field. 

• We conduct regular reviews of 
engagements and partners. Review 
teams are independent and the work 
of every audit partner is reviewed at 
least once every three years. 

• We have policies and guidance to 
ensure that work performed by 
engagement personnel meets 
applicable professional standards, 
regulatory requirements and the firm’s 
standards of quality. 

• All KPMG partners and staff are 
required to act with integrity and 
objectivity and comply with applicable 
laws, regulations and professional 
standards at all times. 

• We do not offer services that would 
impair our independence. 

• The processes we employ to help retain 
and develop people include: 

– Assignment based on skills and 
experience;  

– Rotation of partners; 

– Performance evaluation;  

– Development and training; and 

– Appropriate supervision and 
coaching. 

• We have policies and procedures for 
deciding whether to accept or continue 
a client relationship or to perform a 
specific engagement for that client. 

• Existing audit relationships are reviewed 
annually and evaluated to identify 
instances where we should discontinue 
our professional association with the 
client. 
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Appendix 3: Background and professional 
standards  
Internal control over financial reporting 

As your auditors, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control 

over financial reporting (ICFR) relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on internal control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 

control. 

Our understanding of ICFR was for the limited purpose described above and was 

not designed to identify all control deficiencies that might be significant 

deficiencies and therefore, there can be no assurance that all significant 

deficiencies and other control deficiencies have been identified. Our awareness 

of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature, 

timing, and extent of audit procedures performed, as well as other factors. 

The control deficiencies communicated to you are limited to those control 

deficiencies that we identified during the audit. 

Documents containing or referring to the audited 
financial statements  

We are required by our professional standards to read only documents 

containing or referring to audited financial statements and our related auditors’ 

report that are available through to the date of our auditors’ report. The objective 

of reading these documents through to the date of our auditors’ report is to 

identify material inconsistencies, if any, between the audited financial 

statements and the other information. We also have certain responsibilities, if on 

reading the other information for the purpose of identifying material 

inconsistencies, we become aware of an apparent material misstatement of 

fact. 

We are also required by our professional standards when the financial 

statements are translated into another language to consider whether each 

version, available through to the date of our auditors’ report, contains the same 

information and carries the same meaning. 
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Appendix 4: Current developments  
The following is a summary of the current developments that are relevant to the City of Brampton:  

Standard Summary and implications  

PS Introduction This standard provides the standards to be followed by government partnerships.  Government business 
partnerships (with all public sector partners) are to follow the standards applicable to publicly accountable entities in 
Part I of the CPA Canada Handbook Accounting.  Non-business government partnerships with only government 
partners can chose either PSA Standards or the standards applicable to publicly accountable entities in Part I of the 
CPA Canada Handbook Accounting.   Government partnerships that have one or more private sector partners should 
use the standards determined by the partners.  This section also requires government organizations that meet the 
new definition of government components to apply the PSA Standards.   

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2017 year 
end) 

PS 3210 Assets This standard provides a definition of assets and further expands that definition as it relates to control.   

Assets are defined as follows: 

• They embody future economic benefits that involve a capacity, singly or in combination with other assets, to 
provide goods and services, to provide future cash inflows, or to reduce cash outflows. 

• The public sector entity can control the economic resource and access to the future economic benefits. 
• The transaction or event giving rise to the public sector entity's control has already occurred. 

The standard also includes some disclosure requirements related to economic resources that are not recorded as 
assets to provide the user with better information about the types of resources available to the public sector 
entity.  

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year 
end). 
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PS 3320 Contingent Assets This standard defines contingent assets. 

They have two basic characteristics: 

• An existing condition or situation that is unresolved at the financial statement date. 
• An expected future event that will resolve the uncertainty as to whether an asset exists. 

The standard also has specific disclosure requirements for contingent assets when the occurrence of the confirming 
event is likely.   

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year 
end). 

PS 3380 Contractual Rights This standard defines contractual rights to future assets and revenue.  

Information about a public sector entity's contractual rights should be disclosed in notes or schedules to the 
financial statements and should include descriptions about their nature and extent and the timing. The standard 
also indicates that the exercise of professional judgment would be required when determining contractual rights 
that would be disclosed. Factors to consider include, but are not limited to: 

(a) contractual rights to revenue that are abnormal in relation to the financial position or usual business operations; 
and  

(b) contractual rights that will govern the level of certain type of revenue for a considerable period into the future. 

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year 
end). 

PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures This standard relates to related party disclosures and defines related parties.  Related parties could be either an 
entity or an individual. Related parties exist when one party has the ability to control or has shared control over 
another party.  Individuals that are key management personnel or close family members may also be related 
parties.  

 

Disclosure is only required when the transactions or events between related parties occur at a value different from 
what would have been recorded if they were not related and the transactions could have a material financial impact 
on the financial statements. Material financial impact would be based on an assessment of the terms and 
conditions underlying the transaction, the financial materiality of the transaction, the relevance of the information 
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and the need for the information to enable the users to understand the financial statements and make 
comparisons.  

This standard also specifies the information required to be disclosed including the type of transactions, amounts 
classified by financial statement category, the basis of measurement, and the amounts of any outstanding items, 
any contractual obligations and any contingent liabilities.  The standard also requires disclosure of related party 
transactions that have occurred where no amounts has been recognized. 

 

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year 
end). 

 

PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions A restructuring transaction in the public sector differs from an acquisition as they generally include either no or 
nominal payment.  It also differs from a government transfer as the recipient would be required to assume the 
related program or operating responsibility. 

The standard requires that assets and liabilities are to be measured at their carrying amount.    It also prescribes 
financial statement presentation and disclosure requirements.  

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018 (the City’s December 31, 2019 year 
end). 

PS 3420 Inter-entity Transactions This standard relates to the measurement of related party transactions and includes a decision tree to support the 
standard.   

Transactions are recorded a carrying amounts with the exception of the following: 

• In the normal course of business – use exchange amount 
• Fair value consideration – use exchange amount 
• No or nominal amount – provider to use carrying amount; recipient choice of either carrying amount or value 

fair. 
• Cost allocation – use exchange amount 

This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2017 (the City’s December 31, 2018 year 
end). 
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Standard of Financial Instruments A standard has been issued, establishing a standard on accounting for and reporting all types of financial 
instruments including derivatives. The effective date of this standard has recently been deferred and it is now 
effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019 (the City’s December 31, 2020 year-end). 

This standard will require the City to identify any contracts that have embedded derivatives and recognize these on 
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. Portfolio investments in equity instruments are 
required to be recorded at fair value. Changes in fair value will be reported in a new financial statement – statement 
of remeasurement gains and losses. This standard sets out a number of disclosures in the financial statements 
designed to give the user an understanding of the significance of financial instruments to the City. These 
disclosures include classes of financial instruments and qualitative and quantitative risk disclosures describing the 
nature and extent of risk by type. The risks to be considered include credit, currency, interest rate, liquidity, and 
market risk. 

Revised Standard on Foreign 
Currency Translation 

A revised standard has been issued establishing standards on accounting for and reporting transactions that are 
denominated in a foreign currency.  

The effective date of this standard has been deferred and is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2019 (the City’s December 31, 2020 year-end). Earlier adoption is permitted. An entity early adopting this standard 
must also adopt the new financial instruments standard.  

Exchange gains and losses arising prior to settlement are recognized in a new statement of remeasurement gains 
and losses. 
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Schedule A

The Corporation of the City of Brampton

2015 Municipal Surplus Reconciliation, Tax Levy purpose vs Financial Statements ('000)

2015 2014

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) as at December 31 13,146        6,941         

Less: Return of operating surplus to General Rate Stabilization Reserve 13,146        6,720         

Surplus per CityWide Operating Summary, December 31 ( for tax levy purposes) -$            221$          

Add:  Net interfund transfer eliminated in consolidation 66,202        48,954       

Less:  Expenses charged to Capital projects are reclassified as operating in nature 42,764        34,566       

Add:  Grants/subsidies and other revenue received directly by Capital projects 12,018        10,252       

Add:  Interest earned on reserves and reserve funds not included in the City's operating budget for tax levy purposes 9,728          8,021         

Other Adjustments required for PSAB and TCA purposes:

   Less:  PSAB adjustments re employee post retirement benefits and other legal liabilities 4,081          89              

    Add: DC revenues recognized during the year for project funding 182,628      97,344       

    Add:  Developers contributed assets recognized as municipal equity 76,271        115,410     

   Less:  Amortization expense 119,939      118,399     

   Less: Net cost of tangible capital assets disposed 261             194            

     

Total municipal surplus before consolidation 179,802      126,954     

Consolidated entities surplus ( net of consolidated eliminations, including the Library, BDDC etc.): (883)            (1,995)        

Total annual surplus per Consolidated Statement of Operations , December 31 178,919$    124,959$   

Note:  Under Public Sector Accounting Board reporting standards, financial transactions are reported under one fund,
            i.e.,  transactions of revenue fund, capital and reserve funds are added together.
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 Report 

Audit Committee 
The Corporation of the City of Brampton  

2016-06-07 
 

 

Date: 2016-05-18 
 

Subject: Canadian Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting - 2014 

 
Contact: Shirley Gannon, 

Director of Treasury Services & Deputy Treasurer 
(905) 874-2235 

 
 
Recommendations: 

 
Whereas The City’s 2014 Annual Report received a Canadian Award for Excellence 

in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association of the 

United States and Canada. 

 

Therefore be it Resolved that the report from Shirley Gannon, Director of Treasury 

Services & Deputy Treasurer, dated May 18, 2015, to the Audit Committee meeting 

of June 7, 2016 re: Canadian Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting – 

2014 be received. 

 
 

 

OVERVIEW:  

 The City of Brampton has received a Canadian Award for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting for the City’s 2014 Annual Report from the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada. 

 The City’s Finance Division has consistently received this award for the last 

14 years, commencing with 2001.  

 
 

BACKGROUND 

 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and 

Canada established the Canadian Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting 

Program (CAnFR Program) in 1986 to encourage and assist Canadian local 

governments to go beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted 

accounting principles, as set by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the 

Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) of Canada, to prepare comprehensive 

annual financial reports that evidence the spirit of transparency and full disclosure 

and then to recognize individual governments that succeed in achieving that goal. 
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The Canadian Award for Financial Reporting Program is specifically designed to 

encourage Canadian governments to prepare and issue financial reports to the 

highest quality. 

 

The GFOA reviews the Annual Report submitted by municipalities using a checklist 

designed to determine compliance with both generally accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP) as set by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian 

Institute of Chartered Accountants, and program policy.  Reviews are performed by 

GFOA staff and selected reviewers from government, the public accounting 

profession, and academics who possess specialized expertise in governmental 

financial reporting, typically as a result of either preparing or auditing a report that 

has received the award.  An award is granted only if there is consensus among 

reviewers that a report substantially complies with both GAAP and program policy. 

 
 

The City received its first Award for Financial Reporting for the 2001 Annual Report 

and has received the Award for each consecutive year thereafter.  Meeting the 

stringent requirements of the Award program requires a significant commitment on 

the part of the City’s Corporate Accounting Group and a great deal of collaboration 

between the Finance Division and the Strategic Communications Division, which 

designs and produces the Annual Report. 

 
 

CURRENT SITUATION: 

 

In June of 2015, the City’s Finance Division submitted its 2014 Annual Report to the 

GFOA for consideration for the award.  Staff was notified on January 11, 2016 that 

the City’s Annual Report met the rigorous standards and the City would be receiving 

the Award for 2014.  This is the 14th year the award has been received by the City 

since 2001. 

 

Corporate Implications: 

 

Financial Implications: 

 

There are no financial implications resulting from this report. 

 

Other Implications: 

 

There are no other implications resulting from this report. 
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Strategic Plan: 

 

This report achieves the strategic priority of Good Government by practicing 

proactive, effective and responsible management of finances, policies and service 

and ensuring compliance with statutory reporting requirements.  

 

Conclusion: 

 

Achieving the Award for the 2014 Annual Report is recognition that the City 

successfully has met the financial reporting requirements and the high standards set 

by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and 

Canada.  A copy of the Award is attached to this report.  
 

 

 

 

Report Approved by: 

 

 

Shirley Gannon, Director of Treasury              Peter Honeyborne, Executive Director,  

Services & Deputy Treasurer           Finance & Treasurer   
 
 

 

Attachments: 

 

2014 Canadian Award for Financial Reporting  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report Authored by: Maja Kuzmanov, Manager of Accounting 

 

 

6.2-3



6.2-4


	Agenda
	Item 5.1 Quarterly Status of Management Action Plans – Marc
	Item 5.2 Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline Overview – Phas
	Attachments
	Appendix A: Municipalities with Fraud Hotlines
	Appendix B: Corporate Fraud Prevention Hotline Process


	Item 5.3 Driver Certification Program (DCP) Specified Proce
	Item 6.1 2015 Audited Financial Statements for the City of
	Attachments
	2015 Audited Financial Statements
	Audit Findings Report
	Schedule A


	Item 6.2 Canadian Award for Excellence in Financial Reporti
	Attachments
	2014 Canadian Award for Financial Reporting






